
AGENDA 
KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

10:00 a.m., Friday, March 17, 2023 
 

EISENHOWER STATE OFFICE BUILDING 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 450 & 460 

Topeka, KS 66603 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Minutes of February 17, 2023 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
Items listed on the consent agenda are routine in nature. If requested by a commissioner, 
an item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed under Commission Items 
for further discussion and consideration. 
 
1. Approvals and revocations for certain lottery facility games and related components  

a. GLI Approval Letters February 2023 

b. GLI Revocation Letters February 2023   

c. BMM Approval Letters February 2023 

d. BMM Revocation Letters February 2023 

2. Internal Control Amendment Approvals 

a. Kansas Star Casino Internal Control Amendment Approvals 

E. LOTTERY GAMING FACILITY REPORTS/ITEMS 

1. Boot Hill Casino and Resort 

a. February Monthly Report 

b. February Revenue Report 

2. Kansas Star Casino  

a. February Monthly Report 



b. February Revenue Report 

3. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway 

a. February Monthly Report 

b. February Revenue Report 

4. Kansas Crossing Casino  

a. February Monthly Report 

b. February Revenue Report 

F. COMMISSION ITEMS – OLD BUSINESS 

None 

G. COMMISSION ITEMS – NEW BUSINESS 

None 
 

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

I. STAFF REPORTS 

1. Garrett Rogers, Paralegal 

a. Voluntary Exclusion Program Report  

2. Don Brownlee, Executive Director 

J. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 

The Commission conducts executive sessions in accordance with the Kansas Open 
Meetings Act and all discussions are limited to the specified purposes listed in K.S.A. 75-
4319. The Commission utilizes executive sessions to consult with the Commission’s 
attorney on confidential legal matters, to discuss confidential personnel matters, to 
protect the confidentiality of necessarily closed information including licensee 
background reports, and to protect the integrity of gaming information and the 
confidentiality of lottery gaming facility manager finances.  
 
 
The following items will be discussed during the first executive session:     

 
1. Background Reports 

 



The following items will be discussed during the second executive session: 
 

1. Attorney/Client Privilege  
 

K. OTHER BUSINESS/FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION 
 

1. Consideration of proposed gaming licenses and renewals 
 

L. ADJOURNMENT 



KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES – FEBRUARY 17, 2023 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
(A.) 

 Chairman David Moses called the February 17, 2023, meeting to order at 
10:00 a.m. The meeting was held at the Eisenhower State Office Building in 
Topeka, Kansas. Notice of this meeting was given to the public via the KRGC 
and Public Square websites. Commissioners Brandon Jones, Larry Turnquist, 
and Sheryl Spalding were also present. Others present included Executive 
Director Don Brownlee, General Counsel Judith Taylor, Director of 
Administration, Audit, and Finance Brandi White, Director of Sports 
Wagering and Licensing DJ Lopez, Director of IT&C-s Dennis Bachman, and 
other staff. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
AGENDA 
(B.) 

 Commissioner Jones (Spalding) moved to approve the agenda as amended. 
Motion carried 4-0. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE  
 January 13, 2023 
MEETING MINUTES 
(C.) 

 Commissioner Spalding (Turnquist) moved to approve the minutes of the 
January 13, 2023 meeting. Motion carried 4-0.   

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
CONSENT AGENDA  
(D.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Jones) moved to approve the consent agenda (six 
items). Motion carried 4-0.  

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
BOOT HILL CASINO & 
RESORT 
(E.1.a.) 

 Diane Giardine, General Manager, reported: 
•  January 2023 revenue numbers compared to January 2022: 

o Total gaming revenue decrease 7.77% 
o Total slot revenue down 9.02% 
o Table games revenue up 2.61% 

• January 2023 Sports Wagering revenue numbers 
o Retail Sportsbook Revenue $15,678.13.  

 Down 153.08% from December 2022 
 Handle grew 193% from December 2022 

o Digital Sportsbook Revenue: $2,333,293.40 
 Down 58.97% from December 2022 
 Handle grew 20% from December 2022 
 Hold being down is attributed to the AFC and NFC 

championship games, specifically the Chiefs vs Bengals.  
• January 2023 Sports Wagering 

o Largest Events 
 Chiefs vs Bengals 
 Jacksonville vs Chargers 



 

 Eagles vs Giants 
 Chiefs vs Jacksonville 

o Top Sports 
 38% of bets were placed on NBA games. 
 37.7% of bets were placed on NFL games. 
 17.2% of bets were placed on College Basketball games. 

• February 2023 Sports Wagering 
o Largest Events through February 15th 

 27% of bets were placed on the Super Bowl  
 All other events were NBA games. 

o Top Sports 
 44.7% of bets were placed on NBA 
 27% of bets were placed on NFL 
 25.8% of bets were placed on College Basketball games 

o Super Bowl 
 Retail Sportsbook 

• There was a 400% increase in bets for the day.  
• Boot Hill Casino held -40% on Super Bowl bets. 

o NBA and College Basketball bets brought the 
handle for the day to -20%, the retail sportsbook 
was able to cover the losses. Holding about 7%. 

• 80% of bets were placed on the Chiefs.  
 Digital Sportsbook 

• 30% of the February handle was the Super Bowl 
• 80% of bets were placed on the Chiefs. 
• Hold was -43%, currently the sportsbook is still 

negative, but General Manager Giardine believes they 
will break even near the end of February. The next 
couple months appear to be promising for the 
sportsbook with March Madness occurring in the 
NBA. 

• Chairman Moses asked if there is any tracking of 
demographics or geo-location. General Manager 
Giardine explained that they do not receive this kind 
of data from their vendor. She does know that Draft 
Kings is receiving 35% - 40% of the Kansas market 
share. She said she would ask for the data from Draft 
Kings.  

• Events and Promotions: 
o Weekly Kiosk Games  
o Weekly Food and Beverage Specials 
o Gift Promotions 



 

o $20K Slot Tournament Mania 
o VIP Promotions  
o Promotions for United Wireless Arena Events 

• Upcoming Entertainment & Events 
o Legends Only Gift – January 14 
o Glenn Miller Orchestra – February 4 
o Hairball – February 10 
o Kendra Scott Jewelry Gift – February 11 & 12  
o For King & Country – April 29 
o Soccer – Kansas Bandits – December – March 
o Football – Southwest Storm – March – May 
o State Basketball Tournament - March  

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
KANSAS STAR 
(E.2.a.) 

 
 

Doug Lang, Vice President and General Manager, reported: 
•  January 2023 revenue numbers compared to January 2022: 

o Total gross gaming revenue up 2.1% 
o Total slot revenue down 3.1% 
o Table games revenue up 28.2% 

• January 2023 Sports Wagering revenue numbers  
o Retail Sportsbook Revenue $148,000.00.  

 Down 58% from December 2022 
o Digital Sportsbook Revenue: $3,445,000.00 

 Up 54% from December 2022 
• January 2023 Sports Wagering 

o $59.8 million was wagered on FanDuel online. 
o $1.32 million was wagered in person at FanDuel retail. Of 

this, $659k was bet over the counter and $673k was bet on the 
kiosks. 

o There was a total of 14,586 bets made in person at FanDuel 
retail. 

o The largest wager placed at retail was on Sunday, January 8 
taking the Green Bay Packers to beat the Detroit Lions. The 
wager amount was $25,885.50 and it lost. 

o The largest wager won at retail was on Tuesday, January 31 
with the Kansas Jayhawks over the 

o Kansas State Wildcats. That wager was for $16,102.50. 
o On Sunday, January 29, there was $219,437 wagered at 

FanDuel retail making it the largest wagered day since sports 
wagering began on September 1st. 

• Super Bowl 
o Digital Sportsbook 

 Lost $3.5 million on Kansas Super Bowl wagers 



 

• 92% of Kansas wagers were placed on the 
Chiefs 

• 25% more wagers are placed during the Super 
Bowl than any other betting period in the 
year. Followed by the opening weekend of 
March Madness 

 Chairman Moses asked if the $59.8 million dollars 
wagered on FanDuel was nationwide or just Kansas. 
General Manager Lang confirmed that figure is just 
Kansas.  

o Retail Sportsbook 
 Lost $85,000 on Super Bowl wagers 

• Upcoming Events and Promotions:  
o Double Down | Friday and Saturdays 
o Black and Decker 40pc. Socket Set | Friday, February 17 | 2p-

9p 
o Hosted Event | Saturdays in February | $10,000 in Boyd Play 

or Free Bet | 6p-7:30p 
o QT gift cards | Friday, February 24 | 2p-9p 

• Upcoming Entertainment & Events: 
o Wichita Flea Market | February 24-25 | Arena 
o USA Wrestling | March 3-5 | Arena     

    
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
HOLLYWOOD CASINO 
AT KANSAS 
SPEEDWAY 
(E.3.a.) 

 Dave Rice, Compliance Manager, reported:  
• Admissions were up 29.8% compared to January 2022 
•  January 2022 revenue numbers compared to January 2022: 

o Total gross gaming revenue increase 15.5% 
o Slot revenue up 14.9% 
o Table games revenue up 22% 

• January 2022 Sports Wagering revenue numbers 
o Retail Sportsbook Taxable Revenue was negative in January 

– a loss of $138,979. Handle dropped 13% compared to 
December 2022. The loss is driven by the Chiefs AFC 
Championship game, NCA College Bowl Championship, and 
success of other local sports teams. The handle drop is 
attributed to fewer NFL games.  

o Platform Sportsbook Taxable Revenue was $30,550. Handle 
dropped 8%. The handle drop is attributed to the decrease in 
NFL games. 

• Top Events 
o Chiefs vs Cincinnati  

 Over 11,000 bets placed.  



 

 Money line was the most popular wager with 
$143,000 wagered. This was the biggest loss for the 
sportsbook at $114,000.  

o  Cowboys vs 49ers 
 Biggest win for the sportsbook, winning $72,000 on 

the game.   
o  Super Bowl 

 The digital sportsbook lost over $1 million. 
 The retail sportsbook lost roughly $1.5 million.  

• January Sports Wagering 
o 7,000 bets were placed on the Kansas Jayhawk 
o 5,300 bets were placed on the Kansas Wildcats 
o 324 bets were placed on the Wichita State Shockers 

• Recent/Upcoming Events and Promotions:  
o January 28 - $25K Blizzards of Cash 
o February 1 - $25K Progressive Drawings 
o February 4 – Slot Point Race 
o February 10 – Big Game Suitcase Event 
o February 12 – Big Game Big Drawing 
o February 19 – Daytona 500 Even or Odd Drawing 
o February 26 – Penn Millionaire Promotion 

 Penn Millionaire Slot Tournament – March 24 
o March 2 – Mad March Slot Tournaments 

 Preliminary Tournaments – March 2, 9, and 23 
 Grand Finale Tournament – March 30.   

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS; 
KANSAS CROSSING 
CASINO 
(E.4.a.)  

 Jeff McKain, General Manager, reported: 
• Admissions up 9.3% compared to January 2022 
•  January 2022 revenue numbers compared to January 2022: 

o Coin in up 2.0% 
o Table games drop up 20.1% 
o Net gaming revenue up 14.3% 
o Retail Sportsbook Revenue: -$10,584 

 The retail sportsbook opened January 17th.  
o Digital Sportsbook Revenue: $1,179,189 

 Handle grew 13.5% 
• Super Bowl 

o Retail sportsbook handle was greatest on Super Bowl Sunday. 
The revenue for that day was -$72,000. 

o A $20 wager was placed on the exact score for the Super Bowl 
and paid out $7,000.  



 

o Platform partners reported that 73.2% of point spread wagers 
were on the Chiefs and 82.2% of money line wagers were on the 
Chiefs.  

o The Digital Sportsbook revenue for the day was -$2.7 million. 
 There are three platform partners, one of which had positive 

revenue numbers.   
• Events and Promotions:  

o January  
o Kiosk games every Monday. 
o Kiosk games every Tuesday. 
o Camp 49 Hot promotional specials on Wednesday. 
o Casino Hot Seats every Thursday. 
o Card Shark promotion Friday the 6th, 13th, and 20th. 
o Cash is King month end promotion on Saturday the 28th. 
o Casino gift day every Saturday. 
o Corral concerts included Jackson Dean on Friday the 6th and 

Arch Allies on the 13th. 
o February 

o Kiosk games every Monday. 
o Kiosk games every Tuesday. 
o Camp 49 Hot promotional specials on Wednesday. 
o Casino Hot Seats every Thursday. 
o Love is in the Spins promotion Friday the 3rd, 10th and 17th. 
o 80’s rock band Slaughter on Friday 24th. 
o Cash is King month end promotion on Saturday the 25th. 
o Casino gift day every Saturday. 

• COVID-19 
o 2 cases in January and 2 so far in February.  

   
COMMISSION ITEMS – 
OLD BUSINESS (F.) 

 There was no old business. 

   
COMMISSION ITEMS – 
NEW BUSINESS; (G.) 

 There was no new business. 

   
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(H.) 

 There were no public comments.  

   



 

STAFF REPORTS 
(I.1. and I.2.) 
 

 Judith Taylor, General Counsel, reported on the Voluntary Exclusion 
Program statistics for the month of January 2023 and transfer of ownership 
of the https://ksgamblinghelp.com/ website. 

o Commissioner Spalding asked who was taking over the 
https://ksgamblinghelp.com/ site. General Counsel Taylor 
confirmed it is the Kansas Coalition on Problem Gambling.  

Executive Director Brownlee reported:  
o KRGC has filled the Government Relations Manager position, 

hiring Randy Evans February 6th. This position’s duties will 
include the legislature, government relations, public information 
officer, oversight of regulations approval process, and coordinate 
the selection process for HHR.  
 Chairman Moses asks clarification on the position’s 

responsibilities regarding regulations. Executive Director 
Brownlee says KRGC regulations must go through a state 
approval process. As well as being approved by the 
commissioners, regulations must be approved by the 
Department of Administration, the Attorney General’s 
office, and the regulations go before the legislature’s 
Regulatory Committee. The position’s responsibilities will 
be shepherding the regulations through these processes. 
Chairman Moses asks if there has been any update on the 
sports wagering regulations that were sent to the Attorney 
General’s office. Executive Director Brownlee says that 
there has not been an update.  

 Chairman Moses asks for clarification on the position’s 
responsibilities regarding HHR. Executive Director 
Brownlee says that the commissioners will go through a 
selection process to determine who will receive 
organizational licenses. It will be this position’s 
responsibility to coordinate the information, timing, 
meetings, and events of local officials in Sedgwick County, 
commissioners, and the applicant.  

o KRGC is beginning to staff an investigation unit to deal sports 
wagering complaints and investigations, as well as illegal 
gambling investigations. Wade Schneider has been named the 
manager of that unit. Cedrick Daniels will be responsible for 
sports wagering complaints. Jim Root will continue as KRGC’s 
lead agent for illegal gambling cases.  

o KRGC plans to increase staffing with that unit but will not until 
the White-Collar Crime fund gets going. First deposits will not 
come into the fund until July of this year.  

https://ksgamblinghelp.com/
https://ksgamblinghelp.com/


 

o The Illegal Gaming unit recently conducted an investigation of 
illegal electronic gaming machines in western Kansas. With the 
help of local law enforcement, warrants were served in three 
different counties. There were also warrants for two other 
locations, but by the time officers arrived the machines had been 
removed from the property.  
 Commissioner Spalding asks what happens after an illegal 

gambling device is seized. Executive Director Brownlee 
explains that KRGC seizes the machine, related currency, 
and paraphernalia. Then a forfeiture process occurs in civil 
court. The owner can argue in court for the return of the 
assets. It is possible for a criminal case to be brought, but 
that typically is up to the discretion of the local jurisdiction. 
Once the forfeiture process has occurred, if KRGC is 
awarded the machines, the machines are typically destroyed.  

 Commissioner Spalding asks whether it is rare for a criminal 
case to occur as a result of an illegal gaming device seizure. 
Executive Director Brownlee says that it is not rare, but 
more often-than-not it is only dealt with through civil 
forfeiture. He follows up noting that local jurisdictions do 
not prosecute these cases because they are short-handed and 
other cases are of a more serious nature. The Attorney 
General’s office is also experiencing this issue and so their 
office is not prosecuting illegal gaming.    

o Proposed HHR regulation were sent to industry partners. At the 
end of January, KRGC received suggestions back from those 
partners. KRGC is currently in the process of comparing those 
suggestions to the adopted draft regulations and adjusting them. 
Once completed, the regulations will be presented to the 
commissioners.  
 Commissioner Spalding asks what month KRGC will be 

meeting to discuss HHR. Executive Director Brownlee said 
that he does not know at this time but that it will be the 
commissioners that decide the meeting date.  

o The HHR organizational license applications are due February 
28th. KRGC has responded to seven entities who have expressed 
an interest in the application. 

o This week committee hearings on KRGC’s proposed budget in 
the House and Senate finished. The Senate Ways and Means 
Committee and the House Appropriations Committee have both 
approved the budget as recommended by the Governor. The next 
step is for the budget to come before the whole Senate and 



 

House. This typically occurs towards the end of the legislative 
session.  

o There have not been any gaming specific bills introduced this 
legislative session. There was an interim committee, that had 
suggested they would recommend a bill that would deal with 
commission board member compensation. However, this bill has 
not yet been introduced.  

o The Missouri legislature is pursing sports wagering legislation. 
There are two bills going through the legislature currently.  

o The Oklahoma legislature also has proposed a sports wagering 
bill.  

o Texas has introduced legislation that will start a process to 
approve seven resort casinos in Texas. Sports wagering will be 
considered a part of casino operations. There is also a standalone 
sports wagering bill.  

o Last year nationwide, sports wagering revenue reached $7.5 
billion a 73% increase from 2021.  

o GeoComply is the company assisting to ensure that betting is 
done within state boundaries. The provided the KRGC with 
some data following Super Bowl weekend.  
 During Super Bowl weekend, they processed 2.2 million 

geo-location checks in Kansas. Nationwide, they did over 
100 million geo-location checks. 250,000 attempts from 
Missouri to wager in Kansas were blocked.  

o According to American Gaming Association, 2022 gaming 
revenues increased 14% compared to 2021. December was the 
highest grossing month on record at $5.4 billion. In-house casino 
gambling accounted for 79% of those commercial gaming 
revenues, sports wagering grew to 12%, and internet gambling 
accounted for 8%. 

o There were only four states with brick-and-mortar casinos that 
showed a decrease from 2021 to 2022. Kansas was one of those 
with a 0.5% decrease. The other states were Michigan, 
Mississippi, and South Dakota. The Kansas City gaming market 
increased 1.5%. from 2021 to 2022.  

o The Crosswinds Casino in Park City, owned by the Wyandotte 
Tribe, has purchased a hotel south of the casino location. They 
are currently renovating the property and hope to open the 
property as part of the casino.  
 Chairman Moses asks to clarify if the hotel will be turned 

into a casino. Executive Director Brownlee clarifies that he 



 

understands the intent is to keep the hotel as a hotel and that 
they will run a shuttle from the hotel to the casino.  

o The next commission meeting is scheduled for March 17, 2023.  
 Commissioner Jones said he will not be able to attend. 

Chairman Moses asked Executive Director Brownlee if he 
anticipates information becoming available, as a result of the 
HHR organizational license application deadline, that needs 
to be shared with the commission. Executive Director 
Brownlee said that he anticipates information becoming 
available, but that no commission action will take place. 
Chairman Moses stated that the original meeting date will 
remain.  

   
MOTION, EXECUTIVE 
SESSION; 
CONFIDENTIAL 
BACKGROUND 
REPORTS 
(J.3.) 
 
 

 Commissioner Jones (Spalding) moved that the Commission go into 
executive session for the purpose of reviewing confidential background 
reports presented today by the commission’s security division. In addition to 
the commissioners, the confidential background reports portion included the 
executive director, general counsel, and director of sports wagering and 
licensing. The total time for the executive session was anticipated to be ten 
(15) minutes until 11:05 a.m. No action is to be taken in executive session, 
and the subjects discussed are to be limited as previously described. A full 
record of this motion is to be maintained as part of the permanent record of 
the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission. At the conclusion of the 
executive session, the meeting is to be continued in open session. The motion 
carried 4-0, and the meeting was adjourned to executive session at 10:48 a.m. 

   
RECONVENE 
(J.2.) 

 The commission meeting returned to open session at 11:05 a.m. with 
Chairman Moses, Commissioner Jones, Commissioner Turnquist, and 
Commissioner Spalding present.  
 

   
MOTION, EXECUTIVE 
SESSION; ATTORNEY-
CLIENT PRIVILEGE 
(J.3.) 
 
 

 Commissioner Spalding (Turnquist) moved that the Commission go into 
executive session for the purpose of consulting with the agency’s attorney on 
attorney-client privileged communications. In addition to the commissioners, 
the attorney-client privileged communications will include the executive 
director and general counsel. After discussion, the total time for the executive 
session was anticipated to be hour (1) and ten (10) minutes until 12:17 p.m. 
No action is to be taken in executive session, and the subjects discussed are 
to be limited as previously described. A full record of this motion is to be 
maintained as part of the permanent record of the Kansas Racing and Gaming 
Commission. At the conclusion of the executive session, the meeting is to be 



 

continued in open session. The motion carried 4-0, and the meeting was 
adjourned to executive session at 11:07 a.m. 

   
RECONVENE 
(J.4.) 

 The commission meeting returned to open session at 12:18 p.m. with 
Chairman Moses, Commissioner Jones, Commissioner Turnquist, and 
Commissioner Spalding present. Chairman Moses noted that the executive 
session concluded at 12:17 p.m. but there was a delay reconnecting the 
recording equipment.  

   
MOTIONS ON LICENSE 
APPLICATIONS 
(K.1.) 

 Commissioner Turnquist (Spalding) moved to conditionally approve one 
license application and approve the remaining 206 license applications from 
the February 17, 2023, list of background reports referred to the commission 
for action. The motion carried 4-0. 

   
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
(L.) 
 
 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY: 

______________________  
Larry Turnquist 
Secretary 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
______________________  
David Moses 
Chairman 

 

 There were no other items for discussion or motion.  
 
Chairman Moses stated that the March 17, 2023, commission meeting will 
begin at 10:00 a.m. for an in-person meeting at the Eisenhower State Office 
Building in Topeka, Kansas.  
 
Commissioner Jones (Spalding) moved to adjourn the meeting. Motion 
passed 4-0. The meeting was adjourned at 12:20 p.m. 

 



March 17, 2023 Recommended for Approval GLI Test Labs

Manufacturer File Number Game Name

Acres Manufacturing Company SY-73-AC3-22-07 Nex7 SAS Telemetry System Software

Ainsworth Game Technology Limited MO-22-AWG-22-23 Dollar King - Eagle Bucks

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-231-ARI-21-05 9.00.04.00

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-111 Buffalo Strike

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-112 Buffalo Strike Vertex Schedule

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-148 Aussie Boomer - Dollar Storm

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-22-149 System Base

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-23-02 System Base

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-23-09 Lightning Buffalo Link/Cash

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-23-10 Lightning Buffalo Link Vertex Schedule

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-23-15 Where's The Gold Jackpots Geisha

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-23-16 Where's The Gold Jackpots Vertex Schedule

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-23-17 Where's The Gold Jackpots Buffalo

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. MO-73-ARI-23-18 Cash Express Luxury Line 2x Fireball 7s

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc. SY-394-ARI-23-01 nCompass and nCompass LITE system software

BetMGM   *   02/28/2023 SY-564-ROD-23-01 PAM & SWP

BetMGM   *   06/06/2023 SY-564-ROD-23-01 PAM & SWP

CADILLAC JACK MO-278-CAD-23-01 Main Program

CADILLAC JACK SY-22-CAD-23-01 Maestro Signage Controller

DraftKings   *   02/26/2023 SY-563-DFK-23-01 PAM & SWP

DraftKings   *   03/02/2023 SY-614-DFK-23-01 PAM & SWP

Everi Games, Inc. MO-22-MMG-23-08 MF_ChaChing

Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-23-03 MF_ComboCashSecretTreasures

Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-23-06 MF_ComboCashRockinReels

Everi Games, Inc. MO-73-MMG-23-07 QX40.85x64_L2.4.24-109_P2.6.0-24

Everi Payments, Inc. MO-22-GAC-23-01 JCM iVIZION Bill Validator Firmware

FanDuel   *   02/27/2023 SY-559-FAN-23-03 Sportsbook

FanDuel   *   03/06/2023 SY-559-FAN-23-03 Sportsbook

FanDuel   *   03/06/2023 SY-559-FAN-23-04 Sportsbook

FanDuel   *   02/26/2023 SY-580-FAN-23-03 PAM Platform

FanDuel   *   03/06/2023 SY-580-FAN-23-04 PAM Platform

Global Payments Gaming Services Inc SY-22-GPG-23-01 Kiosk Software

IGT MO-214-IGT-23-01 WOF STP Gold Spin Deluxe Multi Spin Edition

IGT MO-22-IGT-23-03 Bullfroggin' Keno

IGT MO-73-IGT-23-10 JCM Bill Validator Firmware UBA14 USD

IGT   *   02/26/2023 SY-582-IGT-22-05 Margin Maker

Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-122-ELE-23-01 SAS Multigame Module

Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-286-ELE-22-01 Param_hardcode.ini

Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-38-ELE-22-12 Help Files

Interblock d.o.o. (previously Elektroncek, d.d.) MO-38-ELE-22-16 PSCAM 16GB CFA

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-22-74 Pirate's Loot

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-22-75 Lucky Envelope Plum Riches

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-22-88 Lucky Envelope Jade Wealth 

KONAMI GAMING INC. MO-73-KON-23-01 KXP Platform

*   Executive Approval



March 17, 2023 Recommended for Revocation GLI Test Labs

Revoked Manufacturer Revoked Game Name

Revoked File 

Number Revoked ID Number New File Number New ID Number

Replace 

By

Aristocrat Technologies, Inc 2x Fireball 7s Cash Express Luxury Line MO-73-ARI-22-69 1.01-68194 (1.01) MO-73-ARI-23-18 1.02-68194 (1.02) 06/15/2023

Everi Games, Inc. MF_ChaChing MO-73-MMG-22-37 9145 - 2.0.1-0 MO-22-MMG-23-08 9859 - 2.0.3-5 06/15/2023

Everi Games, Inc. MF_ChaChing MO-73-MMG-22-61 9638 - 2.0.2-1 MO-22-MMG-23-08 9859 - 2.0.3-5 06/15/2023

IGT Bullfroggin’ Keno MO-432-IGT-22-13 GAME020001BULD04 MO-22-IGT-23-03 GAME020001BULD05 05/16/2023

IGT Bullfroggin’ Keno MO-432-IGT-22-13 GI020001BULD004 MO-22-IGT-23-03 GI020001BULD005 05/16/2023

KONAMI GAMING INC. Lucky Envelope Plum Riches MO-73-KON-22-15 KGI_M850DSL030WD00 MO-73-KON-22-75 KGI_M850DSL054WD00 06/15/2023

KONAMI GAMING INC. Lucky Envelope Jade Wealth MO-73-KON-22-29 KGI_M851DSL040WD00 MO-73-KON-22-88 KGI_M851DSL062WD00 06/15/2023



March 17, 2023 Recommended for Approval BMM Test Labs

Manufacturer Report Number Game Name

Interblock INTB11112KS PCMD (GV2)

Interblock INTB11162KS PSCAM (GV2)



March 17, 2023 Recommended for Revocation BMM Test Labs

Revoked 

Manufacturer Revoked Game Name

Revoked 

File Number

Revoked ID 

Number

New File 

Number New ID Number Replace By

Konami America's Rich Life Luxury Nights KGI13361KS KGI_M947DSL012WD00 KGI13721KS KGI_M947DSL020WD00 04/16/2023

Konami America's Rich Life Seaside Riches KGI13341KS KGI_M948DSL012WD00 KGI13711KS KGI_M948DSL020WD00 04/16/2023



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

 
 
 
 

Kansas Star Casino Internal Control Amendments 
 

March 17, 2023 
 

 

Item #/ (Description) Regulation 
Waiver? Regulation/IC Reference Staff 

Recommendation 

KS348 – Surveillance and Slot 
Changes No 

KAR 112-104-21; KAR 112-104-
41(b)(26) & (36) / Slots, Section 7; 

Surveillance Plan, Slots 
Approval 

KS349 – Org Chart Yes 

KAR 112-401-1 & 2 / Administration; 
Casino Accounting; Responsible 

Gambling Plan; Non-Gaming; Security 
Plan; Security; Slots; and Table Games  

Approval 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
March 17, 2023 

 
By: Diane Giardine 

 
For the month of February 2023, BHCR experienced a decrease in Total Gaming Revenue of 1.93% over 
February 2022.  Total Slot Revenue was down 3.95% and Table Games Revenue was up 16.87%.   

 
For the month of February 2023, the total Retail Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery was 
$1,739.43. This is up 111.09% from January 2023.  Total Digital Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas 
Lottery was ($1,999,981.73).  This is down 185.71% as compared to January 2023.   

 
 
 
 

Upcoming Promotions & Events 
 
• Weekly Kiosk Games 
• Weekly Food and Beverage Specials 
• Gift Promotions  
• Collect & Go Promotion 
• VIP Promotions 
• Promotions for United Wireless Arena Events 
 

Upcoming Entertainment & Events  
 

• KSHSAA State Basketball – March 8 – March 11 
• One Night of Queen – March 16 
• The Marshall Tucker Band – April 21 
• Los Tigres del Norte – April 23 
• For King & Country – April 29 
• Blippi – April 30 
• Night Ranger – May 12 
• Soccer – Kansas Bandits – December – March 
• Football – Southwest Storm – March - May 

 
 
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

BOOT HILL CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  February  February  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2023  2022  2023  2022 
         

Electronic gaming machines        3,495,152.66   3,638,973.90      28,582,254.55   29,457,380.62 
         

Table games           457,010.44   391,086.24        3,565,253.87   3,310,060.26 
         

Other #                     77.07   108.62                8,124.37   6,093.22 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue       3,952,240.17       4,030,168.76       32,155,632.79       32,773,534.10  

         
State Share 22%           869,492.84          886,637.13         7,074,239.21         7,210,177.50  

         
Local Share 3%           118,567.21          120,905.06            964,668.98            983,206.02  

         
Problem Gambling Share 2%              79,044.80            80,603.38            643,112.66            655,470.68  

         
Casino Share 73%        2,885,135.32       2,942,023.19       23,473,611.94       23,924,679.89  

         
   

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

 



KANSAS STAR CASINO 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
March 13, 2023       

By: Doug Lang 

For the month of February 2023, KSC experienced an increase in Total Gross Gaming Revenue of 2.6% over 
February 2022. Total Slot Revenue was up 4.0 % and Table Games Revenue was down 2.4%. 

 
For the month of February 2023, the total Retail Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery was 
($75.3K). This is down from January 2023’s revenue of $145K. Total Digital Sportsbook Revenue as 
defined by the Kansas Lottery was $10.3K. This is down from January 2023’s revenue of $3.445M. 

 
Upcoming Promotions & Events 

• Double Down | Friday and Saturdays 
• VIP Blazing Hot Seats | 30 people win $250 in Boyd Rewards | Thursday, March 8, 16 & 30 
• VIP Cash Grab | Invited guests print voucher, take to Boyd Rewards, and pull an envelope from 

the drawing barrel. Guest wins denomination in card in cash up to $5,000. | Thursday, April 9 | 
5p-9p 

• Luggage Giveaway | Friday, March 3,10,17 & 24 | 2p-9p 
• Hosted Event | Saturdays in March | $10,000 in Boyd Play or Free Bet | 6p-7:30p 
• QT gift cards | Friday, March 31 | 2p-9p 

 

Upcoming Entertainment & Events 

• Live Music at Tin Lizard | Travis Kidd | April 7-8 | 9pm-Midnight 
 
 
FEBRUARY FANDUEL SPORTSBOOK NOTES 

• $69.7 million was wagered on FanDuel online 
• $1.53 million was wagered in person at FanDuel retail.  Of this #, $979k was bet over the counter and 

$574k was bet on the kiosks. 
• There was a total of 11,271 bets made in person at FanDuel retail 
• The largest wager placed at retail was on Wednesday, February 1 taking the Purdue Boilermakers to 

beat the Penn State Nittany Lions in college basketball.  The wager amount was $20,128 and it won. 
• The largest wager placed on the Super Bowl was $10,000 and was on the Money line for the Chiefs to 

win the game.  The wager was a winner and paid out $20,000. 
• Our biggest player at the Sportsbook wagered a total of $266,281. 
• On Super Bowl Sunday, there was $378,955 wagered at FanDuel retail making it the largest wagered 

day since sports wagering began on September 1. 
• On Saturday, February 18, there was $230,792 wagered at FanDuel retail making it the second most 

wagered day only behind the Super Bowl.  Of this #, $212,997 was wagered on basketball. 
 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

KANSAS STAR CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         

  February  February  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

         
Electronic gaming machines      11,481,475.87   10,901,937.76       89,381,381.72   92,544,254.42 

         
Table games         2,020,768.00   2,070,003.35       17,273,329.26   15,786,354.31 

         
Other #                      56.90   90.76               16,534.06   14,016.02 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue     13,502,300.77      12,972,031.87      106,671,245.04      108,344,624.75  

         
State Share 22% (Tier 1)**         2,970,506.17        2,853,847.01        23,467,673.91        23,835,817.45  

         
State Share 2% marginal (Tier 2)**                            -                              -                                 -                                 -    

         
Local Share 3%            405,069.02            389,160.96           3,200,137.35           3,250,338.74  

         
Problem Gambling Share 2%            270,046.02            259,440.64           2,133,424.90           2,166,892.50  

         
Casino Share  73%         9,856,679.56        9,469,583.27        77,870,008.88        79,091,576.07  

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system. 

         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds. 

 



HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT KANSAS SPEEDWAY 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

 THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
March 17, 2023 

 
BY: LYDIA GARVEY – VICE PRESIDENT & GENERAL MANAGER 

 
February 2023 

 
Admissions 

• February 2023 admissions were up 13.5% compared to February of 2022  

February 2023 Revenue Numbers 

• Total Gaming Revenue came in at $12.97M – an increase of 6.6%  

• Slot Revenue was $11.5M  - an increase of 3.4% 

• Table Games Revenue (including Poker) was $1.4M – an increase of 43.1% 

• Retail Sportsbook Taxable Revenue was negative in February – a loss of $1.6M 

• Platform Sportsbook Taxable Revenue was also negative – a loss of $766,641.94. 

Recent/Upcoming Events 

• February 26 – Penn Millionaire Promotion 

o Penn Millionaire Slot Tournament – March 24 

• March 2 – Mad March Slot Tournaments 

o Preliminary Tournaments – March 2, 9, and 23 

o Grand Finale Tournament – March 30 

• Barstool Sportsbook Mad March 

• March 17 – Leprechaun Hot Seats 

• March 25 – Night of 101 Winners 

• April 1 – Easter Egg Hunt 

• April 12 - $100,000 Big Draw 

• April 13 – VIP Pick Your Flower 

• April 15 – Vacation Getaway Giveaway 

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

HOLLYWOOD CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  February  February  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2023  2022  2023  2022 
         

Electronic gaming machines  
   

11,534,296.20   11,160,244.72  
     

92,215,801.95   89,222,815.71 
         

Table games  
     

1,437,726.75   1,004,932.00  
     

10,851,441.80   7,757,523.20 
         

Other #  
                   

68.40   141.16  
               

7,338.32   11,777.55 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue 

   
12,972,091.35   

   
12,165,317.88   

   
103,074,582.07   

     
96,992,116.46  

         

State Share 22%  
     

2,853,860.10   
     

2,676,369.93   
     

22,676,408.06   
     

21,338,265.62  
         

Local Share 3%  
         

389,162.74   
         

364,959.54   
        

3,092,237.46   
        

2,909,763.49  
         

Problem Gambling Share 2%  
         

259,441.83   
         

243,306.36   
        

2,061,491.64   
        

1,939,842.33  
         

Casino Share 73%  
     

9,469,626.69   
     

8,880,682.05   
     

75,244,444.91   
     

70,804,245.02  
         

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.   

 



KANSAS CROSSING CASINO + HOTEL 
REPORT PRESENTED TO 

THE KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
March 17th, 2023 

By: Jeff McKain 
 

Kansas Crossing Casino is reporting the following preliminary results for February 
2023 vs February 2022; 
   

•          9.0% Increase in Admissions 
•          5.3% Increase in Coin-In 
•       18.7%  Increase in Table Drop  
•         6.0% Increase in Net Gaming Revenue 

 
Sports Wagering:  
For the month of February 2023, the total Retail Sportsbook Revenue as defined 
by the Kansas Lottery was $-121,828. This is down from January which posted       
$-10,584. Total Digital Sportsbook Revenue as defined by the Kansas Lottery was 
$-3,310,368. This is down from January which posted a positive win of $1,179,189. 
 

 
Promotions + Events  
  

•   February 
o Casino Hot Seats every Monday.  
o Casino Hot Seats every Tuesday.  
o Camp 49 promotional specials on Wednesday.    
o Casino Hot Seats every Thursday.    
o Love is in the Spins promotion Friday the 3rd, 10th and 17th.  
o 80’s rock band Slaughter on Friday 24th.  
o Cash is King month end promotion on Saturday the 25th.     
o Casino gift day every Saturday.  

 
 



• March 
o Casino Hot Seats every Monday.  
o Casino Hot Seats every Tuesday.  
o Camp 49 promotional specials on Wednesday.    
o Casino Hot Seats every Thursday.    
o Prize Wheel promotions Friday the 3rd, 10th and 17th.   
o Cash is King month end promotion on Saturday the 25th.     
o Casino gift day every Saturday.  
o Bonus casino gift day of Sunday the 26th.  

 
   



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

KANSAS CROSSING CASINO & RESORT 
         

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue-Unaudited* 
         
  February  February  Fiscal YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2023  2022  2023  2022 
         

Electronic gaming machines        3,325,598.09   3,169,528.30      25,201,662.78   24,089,591.72 
         

Table games           279,435.00   231,436.50        2,007,495.50   1,652,459.00 
         

Other #                   117.21   52.00                1,634.30   1,418.15 

         
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue       3,605,150.30       3,401,016.80       27,210,792.58       25,743,468.87  

         
State Share 22%           793,133.07          748,223.70         5,986,374.37         5,663,563.15  

         
Local Share 3%           108,154.51          102,030.50            816,323.78            772,304.07  

         
Problem Gambling Share 2%              72,103.01            68,020.34            544,215.85            514,869.38  

         
Casino Share 73%        2,631,759.72       2,482,742.26       19,863,878.58       18,792,732.28  

         
*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.   
         
#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.       

 



 
 Phone:  (785) 296-5800 
Eisenhower State Office Building Fax:  (785) 296-0900 
700 SW Harrison, Suite 500 krgc@krgc.ks.gov 
Topeka, KS  66603 krgc.ks.gov 

 
Don Brownlee, Executive Director Laura Kelly, Governor 
 

 

Revenue Source Boot Hill Casino Kansas Star Casino Hollywood Casino Kansas Crossing Casino Total All Casinos 
EGM 3,495,153$             11,481,476$               11,534,296$                3,325,598$                         29,836,523$               
Table Games 457,010                  2,020,768                   1,437,727                    279,435                               4,194,940                   
Other # 77                            57                                68                                  117                                       320                              

Total 3,952,240$            13,502,301$              12,972,091$               3,605,150$                         34,031,783$              

Fiscal Year Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos
2010 20,663,987$           -$                                 -$                                  -$                                          20,663,987$               
2011 40,055,280             -                                   -                                     -                                            40,055,280                 
2012 43,886,501             98,855,928                 54,622,687                  -                                            197,365,116               
2013 43,353,504             192,187,166               124,993,721                -                                            360,534,391               
2014 39,906,275             181,079,650               132,036,392                -                                            353,022,317               
2015 40,513,186             181,754,051               142,759,065                -                                            365,026,302               
2016 38,937,088             181,600,677               143,833,330                -                                            364,371,095               
2017 40,222,932             178,105,968               144,582,037                8,206,260                            371,117,197               
2018 41,186,638             182,084,527               148,770,984                32,465,853                         404,508,001               
2019 41,589,906             184,157,835               150,790,865                34,489,213                         411,027,819               
2020 32,971,510             150,355,262               122,114,403                28,620,752                         334,061,926               
2021 43,690,403             172,711,043               124,388,370                33,857,278                         374,647,093               
2022 49,581,344             162,352,371               149,127,943                39,911,158                         400,972,817               
2023 32,155,633             106,671,245               103,074,582                27,210,793                         269,112,252               

Total Since Opening 548,714,187$        1,971,915,724$        1,541,094,378$          204,761,307$                    4,266,485,595$        

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos
State of Kansas 7,074,239               23,467,674                 22,676,408                  5,986,374                            59,204,696                 
Local Governments 964,669                  3,200,137                   3,092,237                    816,324                               8,073,368                   

 Problem Gambling and 
Addictions Fund 643,113                  2,133,425                   2,061,492                    544,216                               5,382,245                   
Casino Manager 23,473,612             77,870,009                 75,244,445                  19,863,879                         196,451,944               

Total 32,155,633            106,671,245              103,074,582               27,210,793                         269,112,252              

Recipients Boot Hill Kansas Star Hollywood Kansas Crossing Total All Casinos 
State of Kansas 120,717,121           433,950,137               339,040,763                45,047,487                         938,755,509               
Local Governments 16,461,426             59,157,472                 46,232,831                  6,142,839                            127,994,568               

 Problem Gambling and 
Addictions Fund 10,974,284             39,438,314                 30,821,888                  4,095,226                            85,329,712                 
Casino Manager 400,561,356           1,439,369,801           1,124,998,896             149,475,754                       3,114,405,807           

Total 548,714,187          1,971,915,724           1,541,094,378            204,761,307                      4,266,485,595           

*Unaudited-as reported by the Kansas Lottery Central Computer system.

#Other sweeps, principally lost and found funds.

February 2023 Casino Financials

Casino Gaming Revenue for Month Ending February 28, 2023

Cumulative Gaming Revenue per Fiscal Year

Fund Distribution FY 2023

Fund Distribution Since Opening



 
  

 
 

 
                   

      

 

 
 

 
03.06.2023 

62.7%
37.3%

VEP Gender

Male

Female

67.1%

32.9%

Exclusion Period

2-Year

Lifetime

0.2% 0.7%

24.8%

14.8%

45.1%

3.4%
11.0%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

NW NC NE SW SC SE Other

Lottery Region

0.0%
3.3%

21.2%

28.2% 26.1%

15.2%

6.0%

Under 18 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65 Older

Age of VEP

34

13

28
33

19 21 20
15

31
27 27

2422
18

24
27

24

14

21

31

22

32

24
28

15
20

26 26
22 22 20

24
21 22 23 23

19 17 17

0 0

14 13
17

14

21

10 11
16

11
16

8

19 18
15

11

18
21

10 9
12

24
21

9 11 11 13

20
24

30

7 6

14 16

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

VEP Enrollments by Year

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Voluntary Exclusion Program  
January 2010 –February 2023 

Voluntary Exclusions = 2870 
Violation Incidents = 412 (368 individuals) 

 

African Am.
9.4%

Asian/P.I.
16.0%

Caucasian
64.0%

Lat/His
8.6%

Native Am.
0.44%

Other
1.7%

Ethnicity



 

 

 

 

         

    

03/06/2023 

KRGC Voluntarily Excluded Persons 
December 2009 – February 2023 

Colorado – 4 
Iowa – 4  
Kansas-2543 
Missouri -237 
Nebraska – 6 
Oklahoma – 46 
Other-30 
 
 

  

TOTAL VEPs = 2870 

 

 

1
 

 

20
 

5 
74 

 

 

276 

 

 

 1148 

 

 
27 

1 
16 

1 
62 

 

 

 

326 
59 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

2 

173 

 

 

 

 

50 

 

 

 

 

 

4 

 6 
20 

5 

 

1 

 

2 

 

43 

2 

 
4 

1 

 2 

19 

 

10 

8 

 

 

3 

1 

6 

 

 
   2 

  
13 

 

 
48 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

2 

1 

5 

2 

5 

 

1 

2 

4 

 

5 

2 1 

2 1 

2 2 

1 5 

2 

2 

12 

 

 

3 

4 

 

 

1 

 

1 

1 

1 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 

1 



All Departments
DeptID  All
All Funds Beg. Balance 3,970,163        Beg. Balance 179,051            Beg. Balance 121,184            Beg. Balance 66,510             

Revenue 4,788,101        Revenue 312,951            Revenue 15,084              Revenue ‐                        
Expenses 4,701,670        Expenses 222,226            Expenses 61,533              Expenses 4,879               
End Balance 4,056,595        End Balance 269,776            End Balance 74,735              End Balance 61,630             

Fund
BudgetUnit Grand Total

All Funding Sources

YTD FY2022 
ACTUALS

YTD FY2023 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
February 
FY2022 
ACTUALS

February 
FY2023 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE % VARIANCE
YTD FY2023 
BUDGET

YTD FY2023 
ACTUALS

$    VARIANCE %    VARIANCE

51000 Payroll 3,767,757 4,170,573 402,816 11% 452,521 501,439 48,918 11% 5,106,909 4,170,573 ‐936,337 ‐18%
10 Shrinkage 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% ‐381,748 0 381,748 ‐100%
Net Salaries and Wages 3,767,757 4,170,573 402,816 11% 452,521 501,439 48,918 11% 4,725,161 4,170,573 ‐554,589 ‐12%

52000 Communication 52,950 45,451 ‐7,499 ‐14% 8,149 7,340 ‐809 ‐10% 63,467 45,451 ‐18,016 ‐28%
52100 Freight and Express 738 1,202 464 63% 91 99 8 9% 867 1,202 335 39%
52200 Printing and Advertising 100 1,386 1,286 1285% 0 20 20 0% 967 1,386 420 43%
52300 Rents 170,998 173,977 2,979 2% 206 115 ‐91 ‐44% 167,433 173,977 6,544 4%
52400 Repair/Servicing/Mainten 3,439 8,847 5,407 157% 104 1,398 1,294 1245% 37,139 8,847 ‐28,292 ‐76%
52510 InState Travel and Subsistence 20,431 30,916 10,485 51% 2,771 4,211 1,441 52% 133,923 30,916 ‐103,007 ‐77%
52520 Out of State Travel and Subsistence 12,566 17,448 4,882 39% 2,380 379 ‐2,001 ‐84% 0 17,448 17,448 0%
52530 International Travel and Subsistence 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
52600 Fees‐Other Services 197,093 227,456 30,363 15% 18,634 21,596 2,962 16% 227,760 227,456 ‐304 0%
52700 Fee‐Professional Services 1,449 17,416 15,968 1102% 45 10,070 10,025 22278% 221,700 17,416 ‐204,284 ‐92%
52900 Other Contractual Services 7,821 4,157 ‐3,664 ‐47% 450 200 ‐250 ‐56% 14,895 4,157 ‐10,738 ‐72%
Subtotal Contractual Services 467,585 528,256 60,671 13% 32,830 45,429 12,599 38% 868,150 528,256 ‐339,894 ‐39%

53200 Food for Human Consumption 49 24 ‐25 ‐51% 0 0 0 0% 0 24 24 0%
53400 Maint Constr Material Supply 4,545 4,639 94 2% 26 707 682 2673% 2,533 4,639 2,105 83%
53500 Vehicle Part Supply Accessory 6,268 8,971 2,703 43% 910 897 ‐13 ‐1% 20,303 8,971 ‐11,333 ‐56%
53600 Pro Science Supply Material 3,262 812 ‐2,450 ‐75% 0 226 226 0% 23,907 812 ‐23,095 ‐97%
53700 Office and Data Supplies 6,963 11,888 4,925 71% 740 1,070 330 45% 56,037 11,888 ‐44,148 ‐79%
53900 Other Supplies and Materials 5,978 14,362 8,384 140% 4,110 70 ‐4,040 ‐98% 3,733 14,362 10,629 285%
Subtotal Commodities 27,064 40,696 13,632 50% 5,786 2,970 ‐2,816 ‐49% 106,513 40,696 ‐65,818 ‐62%

54000 TOTAL Capital Outlay 39,178 250,783 211,605 540% 385 9,588 9,203 2389% 156,867 250,783 93,917 60%

55960 Vol Retirement Incentive 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
56000 Debt Service ‐ Principal 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
56100 Payments for Interest and Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Subtotal VRIP and Debt Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%

Grand Total 4,301,584 4,990,308 688,724 16% 491,522 559,426 67,905 14% 5,856,691 4,990,308 ‐866,383 ‐15%

Cash Fund Balances as of February 28, 2023
ELARF Backgrounds Illegal Gambling Racing

*This report has not been audited by the State of Kansas and is intended solely for the use of the Executive Director of the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission.




	A.1 2023-3-17 Agenda
	D.1.a GLI Approved - March 17, 2023 - KRGC Meeting
	D.1.b GLI Revocation - March 17, 2023 - KRGC Meeting
	D.1.c BMM Approved - March 17, 2023 - KRGC Meeting
	D.1.d BMM Revocation - March 17, 2023 - KRGC Meeting
	D.2.a Agenda Item Commission Meeting IC 03_17_2023 Kansas Star
	E.1.a KRGC REPORT 02.2023
	E.1.b BH - February 2023 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.2.b KS - February 2023 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.3.a HOLLYWOOD CASINO AT KANSAS SPEEDWAY 031723
	E.3.b HW - February 2023 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.4.a KANSAS CROSSING CASINO March 17th  2023 KRGC meeting
	E.4.b KC - February 2023 Revenue Report - Blue
	E.5 Aggregated Casino Financials - February 2023 Revenue
	I.1.a VEP Data Chart-Ending February 2023
	I.1.b VEP Data Map-February 2023
	Z. Dept by Budget Unit FebFY23



